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MEMORANDUM

To:
LIHI Governing Board

From:
Fred Ayer

Date:
October 6, 2005

Subject:
Follow-up to minimum flow issue by LIHI Staff West Branch St. Regis Hydroelectric Project Certification 

This memo is the record of contacts I’ve made since our last Board call regarding Brascan’s West Branch St. Regis Certificate Application.  As you will see, Brascan and the other parties will be meeting on this issue soon and once I have information on how they have resolved this issue I will send you my recommendations on the certification application.  


RECORD OF CONTACTS
Date of Conversation:


September 9, 2005

LIHI Staff Reviewer:


Fred Ayer

Person Contacted:


Tom Skutnik, Brascan Project Mgr.

Telephone:



(315) 413-2789   

email:




Thomas.Skutnik@brascanpower.com
In a phone conversation with Tom, I told him about the information regarding minimum flows that had come to the LIHI Governing Board’s attention yesterday.  Tom seemed a bit surprised that there was a problem, but when I asked him if he was aware of minimum flow violations, he asked me how we had “found out” ---I told him information had been made available to the Board that there had been occurrences of flow releases not meeting the required minimum.  He said they did have a violation, it was accidental and a gate had been set at the wrong opening and they had honestly thought they were passing what was required.  I asked him if they had reported the violation to FERC.  He said they had not but they were working closely with the FWS and DEC.  I asked him if he was working with Steve Patch of the USFWS, he said yes.   I told him I thought that the LIHI Board would suspend action on the West Branch St. Regis application and my sense was that we would need to do some research which could take a few weeks to complete.  I told him I would keep him up to date.
***

Date of Conversation:


September 9, 2005

LIHI Staff Reviewer:


Fred Ayer

Person Contacted:
Steve Patch, Project Biologist, USFWS Cortland Field Office

Telephone:



(607) 753-9334  

In a conversation with Steve, he explained what he knew to be happening.  He said that they first got complaints in May and they continued through June and July.  In August, working with the agencies, Brascan brought their own consultant out to measure by-pass flows and he determined that where they were supposed to be passing 50cfs, they were only passing 13 cfs—the fixed gate openings were set wrong.  Steve has spoken with Sam Hirschey  and they will be meeting within the month to resolve affects of low flow.  I asked Steve if there had been fish kills and he said they had gotten angler complaints, but had no evidence that there were fish kills.  Steve seemed to think that there had been an unintentional screw up. He pointed out that the same day in August Steve had visited Brascan’s Raquette River Project which is a lot more complex than St. Regis projects and he said all of the by-pass flows (more than the St. Regis Project) looked good---he didn’t think that there was any malice behind Brascan’s actions on the St. Regis, just a mistake.
My sense is that because of the low flows there may have been fish that had been stocked that were lost.  It wouldn’t surprise me if the DEC and FWS will want mitigation for lost fish, so Brascan might end up resolving this through committing to stocking fish and monitoring  results.    

***

Date of Conversation:


September 14, 2005

LIHI Staff Reviewer:


Fred Ayer

Person Contacted:


Sam Hirschey, Brascan Project Mgr.

Telephone:



(315) 413-2790   

email:




Samuel.Hirschey@brascanpower.com
I received a phone message from Sam late in the day.  He assured me that he was aware of the flow situation.  He sounded pretty frustrated because he doesn’t know how it happened.  He said that Brascan will be meeting with the state, USFWS, TU, and NYRU and is quite confident that Brascan will be able to provide satisfactory mitigation for possible damage to resources.

I will try to call Sam tomorrow to follow-up.

***

Date of Conversation:


September 15, 2005

LIHI Staff Reviewer:


Fred Ayer

Person Contacted:


Sam Hirschey, Brascan Project Mgr.

Telephone:



(315) 413-2790   

email:




Samuel.Hirschey@brascanpower.com
Sam called this morning and we had a chance to talk in more detail.  He confirmed that he is in conversations with all the parties and that they (DEC, USFWS, TU and NYRU) have scheduled a meeting for later this month.  Sam said that he felt the state and the USFWS has suggested they want mitigation in the form of stocking fish to replace possible losses to fish stocked by the state and TU.  Sam also confirmed that Brascan had not spoken with FERC and was waiting to talk with FERC after the meeting with the parties and I believe his strategy is to alert FERC to the compliance violation and the proposed mitigation package with the other parties.  Because Brascan has not spoken with FERC yet, Sam is eager to resolve the issue sooner than later.  He committed to keeping me posted.  

***

Date of Conversation:
September 19, 2005

Application Reviewer: 
Fred Ayer

Person Contacted:
Alice Richardson, DEC Region 6 Hydro Coordinator



Telephone/email:

315-785-2267

Areas of Expertise: 

License and Settlement Agreement, flows, recreation and access

Alice returned my earlier calls and shared her thoughts about the St. Regis flow issue.  She did not feel that there was anything malice about Brascan’s flow violation and she was hopeful that Brascan would accept their responsibilities regarding mitigation for the low flow incidents.  Alice wondered why the violation wasn’t more obvious to the operators---there is quite a significant difference between 50 cfs (what they should have been passing) and 13 cfs (what they were actually passing.  Alice said that she would call or send a note after the state and federal agencies and NGOs had met with Brascan.

***
